Minutes of the Western Weber Planning Commission meeting of April 10, 2018, held in the Weber County Commission Chambers, 2380 Washington Blvd. Floor 1, Ogden UT at 5:00 p.m.

Members Present:	Blake Hancock-Chair Jennifer Willener-Vice Chair Roger Heslop John Parke Wayne Andreotti Jannette Borklund
Members Excused:	Mark Whaley
Staff Present:	Rick Grover, Planning Director; Charles Ewert, Principle Planner/Long Term Planner; Felix Lleverino, Planner II; Chris Crockett, Legal Counsel

- Pledge of Allegiance
- Roll Call:

1. Approval of minutes for February 13, 2018

Chair Hancock asks if there are any corrections to the minutes. There are none.

MOTION: Commissioner Heslop makes a motion to approve minutes as presented. Commissioner Willener seconds. Motion carries (6-0)

2. Approval of the 2018 Planning Commission Rules of Order

Chair Hancock asks if everyone has had a chance to review the Rules of Order. He states that they had a chance to discuss them last meeting. Commissioner Parke makes a motion to approve the Rules of Order. Commissioner Willener seconds. Motion carries (6-0)

3. Administrative items

Chair Hancock turns the time over to Director Grover. Director Grover states that the first item is an administrative item, it not required to have a public hearing but it is recommended to take public comment. He states that Mr. Lleverino will give a background, and the applicant Mr. Doug Hamblin would be representing the project. Mr. Lleverino will then explain how it is or how it's not meeting the code.

Chair Hancock asks before they get started are there any conflicts of interest or ex parte communications. There are none.

a. New Business

3.1 LVB100114- Consideration and action on preliminary and final approval of Cameron Crossing Subdivision, a standard subdivision.

Mr. Lleverino gives an overview of the project. It is a standard subdivision for preliminary approval. He states that in order to follow proper procedure the Planning Division has brought this proposal before the Planning Commission because it was approved for a time extension and the time has lapsed. He states that it is brought back for preliminary approval. Chair Hancock asks Mr. Hamblin if he would like to address the Planning Commission. He points out that this was an item that was tabled last month due to an elevation concern with the property owner. Mr. Hamblin states that he and the engineer from the county have met with the property owner to discuss his concerns. He states that they addressed all of the property owners concerns. He wants to move forward with the recommendations. He just wants to make sure that they properly sloped the drop-offs between the sidewalks and his property. Commissioner Heslop asks regarding the Taylor West Weber Water Improvement District approvals it says that it expires 6/17/2015. Is the water permit in order at the present time or has it expired? Mr. Hamblin states that the water system is in and the fees have all been paid. Everything is in order. Mr. Lleverino gives an overview of changes made to the application and overall summary as listed in the staff report.

Chair Hancock opens to public comment-there are none.

Chair Hancock asks Planning Commissioners if there are any further question- there are none.

MOTION: Commissioner Heslop moves to approve the preliminary and final approval for the Cameron Crossing subdivision this is based on the recommendations and meeting the requirements from the state review agencies with the following conditions.

1. That the escrow account is created for the remaining subdivision improvements.

This recommendation is based on the following findings.

1. The proposed subdivision conforms to the Western Weber General Plan.

2. With the recommended conditions, the proposed subdivision complies with the applicable ordinances.

3. The proposed subdivision will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare.

4. The proposed subdivision will not deteriorate the environment of the general area so as to negatively impact surrounding properties and uses.

Commissioner Willener seconds. Motion carries (6-0)

4. Legislative items

Chair Hancock turns the time over to Director Grover to give an introduction and additional instruction on the following legislative items. Director Grover states that as these are legislative items it is required have a public hearing. It is important that after all public comment that you close the public hearing. Once it's closed you come back to the Planning Commission for deliberation. He states that both of these items are instigated by staff so there are no petitioners it is all staff driven.

4.1 Public Hearing: ZTA 2017-15 Consideration and action to the modification to the Cluster Subdivision ordinance to amend open space requirements and provide clarification.

Mr. Ewert states that we are very close and the County Commission has asked for final call for decisions from the Planning Commissions on this. They would like to get a new cluster code adopted before the 180-day pending legislation time frame runs out. They want to see this proposal on May 1st at the County Commission meeting and it can't be done without Planning Commissioners recommendation. He states that whether they are in favor or opposed, they just need the recommendation to take formal action. Mr. Ewert states that he would like to run the Planning Commissioners through modification based on what Ogden Valley Planning Commission has discussed. He points out that it would be good to keep in step with them, to avoid having to use two different ordinances. He states that Ogden Valley Planning Commission recommended approval but

they wanted some things changed. What can be found in the bonus density section is a hybrid transferable right program. The is the ability to move density units from another property to your Cluster subdivision for more bonus points. There would be more concentration of density in one area while leaving other properties more open and less developed. The general plan for Western Weber and Ogden Valley recommends programs such as this. What is written hasn't been vetted and fleshed out. He states that Ogden Valley isn't comfortable adopting it just yet, it might be a few more work sessions before its ready. In the Ogden Valley, they are going to do a whole transferable development right code. They already have elements of this in the resort zones, it's not seen in the West. He states that he recommends excluding that from the recommendation to the County Commission. The other thing he recommends to look at is a little bit extra language. Option B. it is clarifying language for open space parcel area. Regarding bonus density, once everyone has all the information on what 1 unit to the acre does and the potential need for incentive for developers to hold properties open and undeveloped, people tend to warm up to the idea. He states that in the last work session they asked for a graduated scale of bonus density based on the acreage of the subdivision. If you have 10 acres you get 10 percent if you have 50 acres you get 50 percent, but nothing over 50. The hope is that as a land investor are looking at a 20 acre and they see a 20 percent bonus density possibility they might look at the neighboring parcel also, creating more value with scale. If we are looking at more value with scale, we might see larger plat consumed by a whole subdivision but having 50 percent of that be open space. We might see larger open space parcels, which we are going to need if we are going to see long-term agriculture. He states that some people believe that agriculture is dead or dying, and if we aren't providing reasonable places for agriculture to exist, it will by nature die. He points out that fewer kids are getting into agriculture and farmers are getting out of it as they retire. We may not see the negative aspect of it in the short term but we will see it in the long term. As sustainable as we can get long-term in the agricultural realm, at least provide an opportunity.

Mr. Ewert states that regarding bonus density he would just like to go over the changes. Section 108-3-8 Bonus Density. In Western Weber Planning Area, bonus density shall be awarded on a one to one ratio with the gross acreage of a project area. However, no bonus density shall be awarded for a project with a gross acreage less than 10 acres, and no bonus density over 50 percent shall be awarded for projects a gross acreage over 50 acres. A subdivision that is awarded density shall:

1. Provide a minimum 50 percent open space of the net developable acreage, as defined in Section 101-1-7.

2. Provide one street tree of at least two-inch caliper, from a species list as determined by county policy, every 50 feet on both sides of each street, within the project boundaries. In the event infrastructure or a driveway approach makes a tree's placement impossible, that tree shall be located as close to the 50-foot spacing as otherwise reasonably possible.

3. Comply with all provisions of Title 108, Chapter 16: Ogden Valley Outdoor Lighting Ordinance, which is incorporated by reference herein as applicable to a cluster subdivision in the Western Weber Planning Area that receives bonus density. A note shall be placed on the final subdivision plat indicating this requirement.

Mr. Ewert states there is not some subjective bonus density criteria here either you are going to comply with principles and get bonus density or you are not. The hope is agriculture open spaces, dark sky treatments, street trees in communities, and minimum 50 percent open space. Mr. Ewert asks if there are any questions from the Planning Commissioners. There are none.

Mr. Ewert states that in order to implement the code the way it's written, we needed a number of new definitions.

Accessory dwelling unit, if a section of code regarding transfers were to be adopted. He states that it is right to keep the changes specifically where the accessory dwelling unit comes up.

Adjusted gross acreage and net developable acreage, he states that as he read those definitions he couldn't find any real difference between them. He states that he believes that one showed up at one point in timebased on one ordinance and then without realizing it another ordinance was proposed using different language. In 2012 all these different codes were combined and all the definitions showed up next to each other. He states that he is deleting one in favor for the other and modifying it a bit to make it more general to the entire code. Everything you find in this definition you can find somewhere else in the code. Now it's all in one centralized definition.

Acreage unsuitable for development, what the code previously said nondevelopable area. He states that this misleading. There are very few areas that are not developable, it just depends on how deep your pockets are. It was changed to Acreage unsuitable for development, it is a bit subjective, generally speaking, these are areas that are not going to see a lot of development.

These terms are important to properly define because when we are looking at how much density is entitled on a piece of property, right now there is nowhere in the code that tells us how to do that calculation. We know that based on the type of zone, in the A-1 zone using one unit every 40,000 square ft. We can do the math and figure out how many units can come out of a 40-acre property. There isn't anywhere that actually explain how to do the calculation. When you are looking at net developable acreage you are adjusting 10 percent for open space. You don't want to give somebody all the bonus of the 40-acre parcel if they have to pull out acreage for the roads. You have to adjust for road space, soil issues, slopes, and area suitable for development.

He states that then regarding base density. The term "base density" means the number of units allowed in an area. For development types that permit a reduced lot area that otherwise provided by the zone, it's going to be cluster and PRUD, the base density shall be calculated as the net developable acreage, as defined herein, then divided by the minimum lot area of the zone. This calculation can be observed by this formula: ((net developable acreage) / (minimum lot area)) = base density. The result shall be rounded down to the nearest whole lot.

The word Estate lot shows up he just wanted to make sure it was better defined.

He points out that the phase nondevelopable area shows up twice in the definition section so it was just stricken.

As far as all the edit blue line and red line normally what he gives is the blue line and redline additions and strikeouts. That is not what he did in this case, because we've been working on this for so long. He states that the blue lined and redlined the difference between what was seen last time and what you are seeing this time. The County Commission will see blue lines and redline from the original code. It's going to be all red strikeout and all blue addition. All the little thing distributed throughout in blue and red is just changes made by the staff and the legal department to make sure it is clear and concise as it can be. One exception is subdivision phasing. We have a phasing plan already in our subdivision ordinance. He states that they are in the process revising the subdivision ordinance. He points out that he opted for waiting until the subdivision ordinance is done, as opposed to having two different things in two different places. He asks if the Planning Commissioners are comfortable with this. They are. He states that subdivisions can be phased there is a time schedule in the existing subdivision ordinance, this was being a lot more flexible than what's in the existing subdivision ordinance.

Mr. Ewert states that regarding Section 108-3-4 Residential cluster subdivision design and layout standards, generally. There is additional language there is quite a bit of subjectivity to determine what ridgelines, canyons, waterways, stands or grouping of mature vegetation, wildlife habitat and other sensitive ecology is. The intention was to allow the developer to determine what they want to preserve. The Ogden Valley Commission wanted to be less permissive. He states that we don't the developers protecting something that

has no community value. The developer needs to find something from the county general plan, a state document federal document, some sort of conservation document.

Regarding street configuration, the Ogden Valley Planning Commission has asked to be excluded from the way that this is written. He points out that out west we are looking at street configuration along existing road and where possible along existing quarter line section roads. In the Ogden Valley, they already have a master street plan. They are not following the grid system anymore they would rather see meandering roads as their main roads. He states they are just going to stick to whatever is in the general plan. The County Commission will receive a hybrid it will still be as applicable as it is written in this version to Western Weber and there will be an amendment specific to the Ogden Valley.

Regarding Pathways, he states that on the County's active transportation coordinator we have an active transportation committee. There are a lot of conference on how to make active transportation measures to make non-motorized transportation options attainable for residences. He tells the Planning Commissioner that as they are thinking about this as a livable community perspective they are going to see a lot of people want pathways within their communities with direct access their schools and the churches for the recreational opportunities. In a larger scale both in terms of health impacts and cost savings there is a lot of broad application and under the pathways section, what is shown is a list of criteria on how appropriately design a pathways grid. The average American will not walk more than a quarter of a mile to their destination. If you want to find yourself in a walkable community, we need to provide pathways or active transportation that will get people to their destination within a quarter of a mile. If we can provide a social environment where there are more opportunities to go from place to place. The County code currently has a street block standard if you are building a subdivision you have to create a new block every maximum 1300 ft. if you are on an existing length of road and you are developing your frontage within that area if you are between 500 ft. and no more than 1300 ft. from the nearest intersection you have to provide a new street with a new intersection. What this does is it treats pathways somewhat similar to that just a strong network of connectivity. Commissioner Borklund asks if it can be simplified for the regular population. Mr. Ewert states that he is currently working with legal on simplifying it. Commissioner Borklund points out that it might be good to have a diagram. Mr. Ewert states that this was his first thought also, to simplify it and add a diagram. He states out that he is going to pass the pathways section along to the County Commission as is and the counties recommendation and he aware that there is some room for improvement.

He points out that most of what is seen in strikeouts between the following pages is clarification, and completing incomplete paragraphs where they were incomplete before, but not substantial changes or modifications.

Regarding the open space parcels shall be organized in the contagious open space areas. When we are looking at that, we were looking at ways to simplify the standards. He states what we wanted to do in our discussion was try to encourage open spaces that are sustainable agriculture opportunities for the future. A 50ft foot wide implement needs to have the ability to make at least 3 turns. The way it was written before was hard to understand. We are looking at 450 ft. wide. A really important point make is if there is any ambiguity we have to rule in favor of the applicant if it's a reasonable interpretation. There is a couple of addition based on some of the new definitions.

Regarding drainage facilities. Drainage detention and retention facilities may be located on an individually owned preservation parcel and count towards the subdivision's overall open space area, but the acreage of the facility shall not be included as a part of the parcel's agriculture use, and the acreage of the facility shall be in addition to, not a part of, the minimum parcel area requirement. He states that it is modified a bit to make more sense.

Regarding option B., it is modified a bit more. One of the concerns from the Ogden Valley was isn't drainage required for agriculture operations too? He points out that they don't necessarily mean agriculture they mean the drainage facilities for hard surfaces of the subdivision, so there was some clarifying language added.

Mr. Ewert states that one thing he forgot was on estate lot we want the same language as listed in individually owned open spaced. The Planning Commission can make their recommendation to add option B as a recommendation if they like it.

Mr. Ewert points out that he's been working really hard to make it executed for approval by the Planning Commission. He states that as he got thinking about it, the current code does do something right, in the context that it probably needs a separate agreement to discuss each of these, maintenance and, what the open space plan is. He states the goal is to create an open space plan that can be amended through time without having to amend the entire open space plat. If we adopt the open space plan through the plat we are going to be amending those plats for open space amendments. It's going to be a waste of time and an unnecessary waste of money for the applicant. If they can get in and amend the agreement also the County Surveyors will be able to see who the owner of those open space parcels is going to be over time.

One other addition was that any violation of the approved open space plan of the constitutes a violation of the land use code. Even though it's a private agreement or a special agreement it is authorized through the land use, therefore, it is a violation of the land use code.

Mr. Ewert points out that everything from line 568 through to line 644 should be omitted if the recommendation from the Planning Commission is positive.

He states that regarding Home Owners Association there has been some concern, they are hoping that with the way the individually owned preservation parcels and the estate lots are going there will be less need for HOA's. There is still the option for it to exist, but there are criteria that the HOA's need to comply with.

Commissioner Andreotti states that they could essentially put a farming area in a subdivision. There might be issues of liability and trespassing. He asks how we can get around it. Mr. Ewert answers that at this point there are subdivisions going in next to farmland. It's one of the reasons you see the no trespassing signs. He states this will not necessarily change anything, it will create more density where farmland would be. The farmland would be privately owned, so it would be trespassing. It would be up to the farmer to see that it is properly fenced to keep people out. Commissioner Andreotti states that regarding sustainability, two things that are very important agriculture operations, and developments. He states that he just wants to make sure they aren't making more problems than what we are solving. Mr. Ewert states that the question is how to most appropriately do that while not denying the person the ability to divide and another person the ability to farm. There are more abrasive things that jurisdiction can do. We can say that this particular is known for residential and the agriculture can exist until residential pushes it out. Agriculture and residential can exist so long as agriculture is not pushing it out. Commissioner Andreotti states that the problem where he lives is he has 2000 cow a mile away. The agriculture has a responsibility, he states he lives a quarter mile from where they blow and there were times where his white car would be green from the stuff they blow. He would like to see a rule or something that would allow both to coexist. Mr. Ewert states that a few years ago he went to the Farm Bureau and they talked about self-government. It was specific to the selling of non-pasteurized milk. The dairy farmers were saying we need to create rules ourselves because if we don't the public will create rules on us and they are going to be more restrictive than they need to be. He states that he really appreciated that discussion. He appreciated the responsible farm owners for that. Commissioner Andreotti states that these are issues are going to have to be addressed, the deeper we go into development. Director Grover states that one thing the Planning Commission may want to look at when the agriculture preservation plan with more scrutiny. One benefit we have with the cluster subdivision is the agriculture preservation plan that will be associated with it, you don't have that with a standard subdivision. A standard subdivision can come in next to

a farm area and there are no restrictions. He points out with the cluster subdivision the public knows what they are buying into. They know that agriculture will be next to them, and if they are doing their due diligence they are looking into the agriculture preservation plan. They should know what areas are required to be fenced off or that there is certain restriction regarding fertilizing. With the cluster subdivision, you do have that benefits, but not with the standard. Commissioner Borklund asks if Mr. Ewert can give more detail on what is required for an agriculture preservation plan. Mr. Ewert states that they are going to identify what is going to be privately owned and what's going to be a common area. He states that there are pros and cons. One of the benefits is there will be more flexibility, the con is there will be less predictability on the back end. He states that the Planning Commission can impose conditions reasonably related to operations and maintenance and compliance of the open space plan. It would be reasonable under that criteria to put conditions on the plan that would be then be incorporated into the open space plan. Commissioner Willener states regarding line 239 where it talks about pathways she just wants to make sure that by allowing pathways as an alternative to for sidewalk that we aren't alleviating the responsibility for curb and water management. Mr. Ewert states that curb, gutter, and sidewalk are part of the existing subdivision code it is required. He states that our code does allow for deferrals agreements so that people can defer the reasonability to install it for a later when the county is ready for it. He states that he is going to recommend that we don't do deferrals. They are really hard to call on. It feels a bit like bait and switch. Commissioner Willener asks this is only allowing a pathway in lieu of the sidewalk. The curb and gutter would still be required on both sides of the street fully integrated into the storm drain. Mr. Ewert states that another part of the subdivision code is all the engineering and design requirements for the infrastructure so there will be plenty of time to discuss what type of curb, in all cases either a sidewalk or a pathway. Mr. Ewert states that he would like one more brief request in making a recommendation he asks that they allow some flexibility to continue to mold the language with the attorneys. He states that he would like to remind them to address option B.

Chair Hancock opens the public hearing

Gary Hipwell 313 S 3600 W states that he would like to know how big the lots in the clusters are and how far apart are they from each other. He asks if they have ordinances on this and amount of the value of the homes. He states that he can't see how they can put 40 homes on 17 acres and the houses are going to be on half of that. people are going to be riding their ATV's. He did custom farming for other people and when you use a bailer you walk had to walk around to make sure you didn't bring up bicycles or whatever. If in this instance if you look at where the open space is in the 40 house subdivision, it's not farmable and you can't get your machine in there and you can't water. If your owner-occupied, then you have to take care of it. If you are building 40 homes if it's 60 or 70 ft. wide, he states that it would have to be carriage houses. They are going to be built cheaply to keep the cost down. Regarding sewage any house that is built on a slab is going to have it pumped up into a second tank and then pumped into the drain field. He states that you need 600ft of drainage 3ft wide and 200 ft. of the pipe. some of these lots, some of the lot sizes are 750 sq. ft. so, in that case, you can put 5.8 houses on an acre. Right now you have 1 house 150 ft. frontage in order to build if we are not going with the cluster. He wants to get cluster housing looked at before its approved.

Brent Hipwell 585 S 3600 W states that he wants to commend staff because he feels they have really been listening. He states that he agrees with Gary regarding the lots sizes. Based on the lot sizes it's going to lower income and it might attract 1st home buyers but it might also attract troublemakers that are looking for a small homes. He states that they want to keep their area nice. He noticed they are taking out the area available for use of bonus density for retention and detention basin, but there was nothing on natural floodplains and river overflows. He believes it is something that needs to be looked into and should be added to the retention basin and detention basin. Regarding the roadways being built on section lines he believes it should be up to the County to require developers to build a portion of the roads. He states that somehow we've got to get those on the section lines and protect the section corners. Its valuable to a property owner when there is a dispute because they have to go find them and if they are in somebody's backyard on a 5000-acre lot odds are that

the house is built on a section line. He would like to see developer forced to leave access and future infrastructure on those section lines. He states that the County ought to buy the property and make the developer build that road. If they do that they might at least have the main thorough through and they don't have to go through developments to get to "Mr. Brown's house". He believes that it's a great idea but he doesn't know how it is going to be enforced.

Mr. Ewert states that he is hoping that what he is proposing speaks to the majority of the questions. He states that the code specifies minimum lot sizes 9000 sq. ft., he agrees it's not ideal but when it comes to open space area and maximizing the open space in the face of the existing development rights they have, if we can put the footprints as small as they can be we are going to see more open space preserved. When it comes to the product the developer is going to choose how wide those lots need to be. He points out that the minimum is 60ft and the developer might do wider if it suits their needs. He states that developers that are coming in are concerned about how to provide affordable housing for moderate-income, not low income. 80 percent of the low to moderate income threshold is 40,000 dollars a year for a person that makes this amount they can only qualify for a mortgage of \$1,000 which would amount to less than \$200,000. He states that you are going to be hard-pressed to find that out west even if its 9000 sq. ft. parcel. You can barely build a house for less than \$200,000 at this rate, a reasonably sized home. He states that most of the developers that he has been talking to are going to be building wider lots because they can't fit their product on a 60 ft. lot. There is a possibility that we will see smaller width parcels maybe 60ft wide deeper homes.

He states that drain field concerns are very good concerns. Any kind of minimum lot size in our zone a developer can't go down to minimum lot size unless they have sewer and water provided to the site. If they have water provided to the site, the health department is going to require the 20,000 sq. ft. a certain type of grade for the septic system. That by itself is going to raise the lot sizes to the minimum of 20,000 sq. ft. if you put a well also you have to have a 100ft diameter or 200ft. wide wellhead tension zone on the property. If you don't have public water and sewer you are going to get acre and a half lots regardless of the 9,000 sq. ft. standard. He states that he doesn't believe there will be a lot of Cluster Subdivisions in that area because the standard subdivisions would suit their needs just fine.

Regarding floodplains and bonus densities we have the definition for the acreage unsuitable for development. Net developable acreages are adjusted for acreage unsuitable for development. Base density takes net developable acreage and is a factor of minimum lot size. Hopefully, this eliminates the areas that are non-buildable. Commissioner Borklund asks if that includes non-farmable. Mr. Ewert states that it doesn't the non-farmable is still included for the base density calculation, but in the agriculture zone the farmable ground is the primary ground, it is the priority ground for the open space. You place the homes in the areas that aren't farmable and preserve the area that is farmable. There is something specific written on page 9 line 415 regarding floodplains and waterways. Under sensitive lands it states that Cluster subdivision in or on sensitive lands shall be governed as follows:

A. Lands that can be mitigated such as floodplain and wetlands are considered developable for the purpose of calculating net developable acreage, as defined in section 101-1-7.

Mr. Ewert states that if it is mitigatable we would still include it as a part of the density calculation. One thing to think about is we are no longer awarding density on the graduating scale, it's just 50 percent open space if you are going to get any kind of density awarded on those areas. Regarding section lines and quarter section lines, this is something the Planning staff is going to look for before its brought to the Planning Commission, and it's something that needs to be looked for by the Planning Commission to ensure that the Planning staff has done their jobs.

Line 182 page 4 regarding Street configurations states that Streets shall have logical and efficient connections, with intersection distances no less than provided in Section 106-2-3 and shall generally follow existing street grid design. Section line streets are mandatory and shall not be waived.

Mr. Ewert states that if you are building on an area that is on a section line but there is no access to that area. What would be done can be seen in North Ogden the extension of Monroe Blvd, it runs through a farmer's property and that property is preserved for future right of way. The farmer is still farming it, but it is set aside for the city, and there is an agreement between the landowner and the city. He states that they should be able to do the same thing, take dedication when a subdivision plat comes to the right of way area and defer responsibility for improvements for a later time. It doesn't make sense to put a road in that goes nowhere, at the very least get the public right of way.

Line 184 page 5 when practicable, quarter section lines shall denote the general location of other through streets. If current parcel configuration does not make this practicable, a through street, or stubbed street that will be a future through street shall be located as close to these lines as otherwise possible.

Mr. Ewert states that it lists some criteria that the Planning Commission can waive, but there is some discretion in waiving but the criteria is pretty limited. You don't have to provide a waiver.

Line 195 page in allowing a waiver under this subsection the planning commission may require the street to be placed in another location to offer optimal compensation for the lack of connection required herein. No waiver shall be granted for section line roads.

Mr. Ewert states that what he strongly recommends that they do with that discretion and what staff will also likely recommend on a regular basis is if it is a quarter section line that you can't punch through because there is valuable agriculture property or there are environmental constraints that keep it from being connected somewhere else, make it curve around to make it move in a snake-like fashion until you get around and get an efficient and logical connection through the subdivision. He states that we can't force this to happen and there is some subjectivity in your ability to wave quarter sections and no subjectivity in your ability to waive the section line.

Director Grover states that one thing he wants to make a note of is that in Shadow Valley zoned R-1-10 they have 10,000 sq. ft. of lot area you are looking at 9,000 sq. ft. so it's similar lot sizes. He states that it's a good comparison. Shadow Valley is southeast, Ogden. He states that another point of reference is the Mount Ogden area which is by Weber State and it is zoned R-1-8 and that's 8,000 sq. ft. Mr. Ewert states that his own area is also zoned R-1-8 it is non-conforming lots 6,000 sq. ft. He states that it is a nice area, so it's not impossible to get nice neighborhoods out of the smaller lots.

Commissioner Heslop asks if these same standards are going to be looked at in the PRUD. Mr. Ewert answers that they are but it's going to be different. The County Commission has asked for a recommendation for their consideration in their 3rd June meeting. He states that they are essentially repealing the majority of the administrative nature of it and making it legislative so that at the end there will be some negotiation flexibility with the developer and at the end, not everything has to be approved. It's going to be a zone with full legislative discretion. Once they get into that he would expect that they have a number of these standards and if they get to the point where they want a mirroring, he states that it might be good to eliminate PRUD in favor of Clusters or find a way to spread them out so we don't have a lot of zones or codes.

Jaime Russell 889 N 4700 W states that they built their house on the river. They used a large amount of dirt to build the house so that it would fit the code. In 2011 when there was flooding the house did not flood but the hay field and everything else around flooded. The property cluster homes were under water. She states that her nephew just built a house on the river and he also had to bring in a large amount of dirt to fit the code. Why isn't the cluster home required to bring that amount of dirt? Why do single dwelling get picked on and

the cluster homes are able to get away with it? What happens when it floods and it floods all those homes, and the liability that falls on the county because they give permission to build that way in the floodplains. She would also like the Planning Commission and staff know that she never got a notification for the West Weber Visioning meeting. She states that she also has concerns about the river walks being put through her land, it going to make her and her family vulnerable to be robbed. She states that they have had items stolen before. She feels that it not fair to her and her family.

Commissioner Parke asks don't the lots that she is referring to all need to be built up above the flood line. Direct Grover states that that is correct they are all going to have to meet the building code requirements, they won't be exempt. Certain portions of that will be addressed at final subdivision review. Those things are addressed with the Cluster, standard and there are no exemptions. He states that with regards to the West Weber Visioning there were no notices sent out to anyone, they tried to get the information out as best as they could. They give out information when there were the caucuses and post notices on the church bulletins, and send notices with students from the school. There was no actual notice requirement. The next meeting just so that everyone is aware is May 15, 2018, at West Weber Elementary at 6:30 and the next one May 29th also at West Weber Elementary. Please spread the word as much as you can. He states that he wants people to come and give their input, but there are not enough funds to mail notices to everyone. He states that they were pleasantly surprised at how many people were there. The comments will be shared at the next meeting.

Member of the public who did not state their name asks is there anything in the ordinance that says the road has to be a certain width. Mr. Ewert states that for the vast majority of the right of way it 60ft. and the asphalt width is between 26 and 32 ft. depending on the type street. He states that currently, the engineering department is looking at those standards to determine if there needs to be some modifications. It depends on the road facility. Commissioner Borklund 60 ft. the road surface, curb gutter. Mr. Ewert adds that it also includes the snow storage and the water drainage.

Member of the audience states that they would have to bring sewer down to the subdivision, the sewer would have to be pumped up to the sewer line. He asks where are the pumping stations going to be. If there is going to be that many homes down there and you run a snow plow down each side of the road, where is the public going to walk? He states that you need at least 100 ft. If you are going to build 230 homes in an area with 1 access it doesn't make sense.

Chair Hancock closes for public comment

Mr. Crockett states that he would like to make a clarification. It is a public hearing, and public comment was heard but there is a legal distinction between public comment and a public hearing.

Chair Hancock asks if there is a motion to close the public hearing.

MOTION: Commissioner Borklund motions to close the public hearing. Commissioner Parke Seconds. Motion carries (6-0)

Chair Hancock asks if there is a motion regarding ZTA-2017-15.

Commissioner Parke motions to approve item ZTA 2017-15 Consideration and action to the modification to the Cluster Subdivision ordinance to amend open space requirements and provide clarification with amendment B. incorporated. Deleting lines 568-644 and to allow for flexibility in language for clarity and technical changes. This recommendation is based on the findings that it complies with the West Central Weber County General Plan. Commissioner Heslop seconds. Motion carries (6-0)

Commissioner Parke states that he would like that public to know that their concerns are being heard. He states that the ordinance that is in place now, doesn't work the way it should, and has created some problems. He

states that the goal is to fix it and this is what this is all about. He wants them to know that they appreciate the public comments.

4.2 Public Hearing: ZTA 2017-09 Consideration and action to the modifications to the definition of "Height of Building" and additional clarification regarding standards and regulations governing the height of a building.

Mr. Ewert states that he wants to clarify what they are hoping to accomplish with this ordinance and touch on the points. He states that right now we measure the height of the building from natural grade. In Western Weber County there is a lot of fill that comes in to alleviate some concerns. Occasionally fill comes in because they want a taller home. Right now measuring from natural grade is a challenge on administration because by the time the house is built we don't know where the natural grade is. He states that in order to help facilitate administration better they are proposing that it is measured from finished grade. There is not a right or wrong answer different jurisdictions do it differently. One thing we are hoping to avoid is the Summit County model. It works well for them and they do natural grade, they require the applicant to provide a surveyor certificate of the natural grade, and a certificate for the footing and foundation level and a certificate one for actual building height. It requires a lot of expense. He states that it can't be more than 5 ft. unless your home is within 75 ft. of a public right of way and the right of way is taller. Then you can bring in fill to bring your home up to match the right of way. He states that while they were doing this they saw an opportunity to improve the requirements for submittal. Right now there is not a lot of requirements for what needs to be submitted when you are showing your site grading plan. Where your natural grade was, where your final grade is going to be, and where your elevation at the top of the foundation is at any point of the building. He states that if you get a professional architect they usually provide this information, but the majority of the plans don't come from architects they come from draftsman. He adds that the hope is that this will encourage better submittals and to determine from the front end how much fill is going in. This might help determine what the difference in natural grade and finished grade is at any one of the corners. He states that they want to see grade lines in all the submittals. It will show where the existing grade line, the natural grade line, and the finished grade line. He states that almost everything else that is in there is items that are already in the code or has been added for clarity. Regarding Cell phones towers most of what can be seen in the tower section are already in the code. New items start with the tower disguise; you will see that in some communities the public wants see cellphones towers integrated into the environment. This would mean that if it is meant to be disguised as a tree the average person would not be able to tell its fake standing at 200 ft. away. The disguised towers should architecturally replicate structures that are commonly accessory to onsite agriculture uses in village areas in the Ogden Valley, make it look like something found in a historical mining town. At this Planning Commissions request, the requirement for the disguise may be waived by the appropriate land use authority in cases where the disguise is inconsistent with existing or future-planned land uses onsite or in the area.

Commissioner Willener asks if the cell phone tower that was approved last year would meet this ordinance. Mr. Ewert states that it would, maybe not what resulted, but what was proposes would meet the ordinance. He states that they are still working with them to get it in compliance with the code. Commissioner Heslop states that unless you knew it was a cellphone tower you wouldn't be able to tell. It looks like an unfinished sign, not a bell tower.

Chair Hancock asks if there are any more questions form the Planning Commission. There are none.

Chair Hancock opens for a public hearing. There is no public comment.

MOTION: Commissioner Borklund motions to close the public hearing. Commissioner Heslop seconds. Motion carries (6-0)

Chair Hancock asks if there is a motion for a recommendation.

MOTION: Commissioner Heslop moves to recommend that the County Commissioners adopt ZTA 2017-09 Consideration and action to the modifications to the definition of "Height of Building" and additional clarification regarding standards and regulations governing the height of a building. This recommendation is based on the findings that it complies with the general plan. Commissioner Parke seconds. Motion carries (6-0)

5. Public Comment for Items not on the Agenda-None

6. Remarks from Planning Commissioners-Commissioner Parke would like to commend the staff for a job well done. Chair Hancock agrees that staffs hard work is appreciated.

7. Planning Director Report- Director Grover states that Chair Hancock and some staff going to the national APA conference. He states that they will also be attending a local conference and some good information will be brought to the Planning Commission.

8. Remarks from Legal Counsel-none. Mr. Crockett agrees that staff has done a tremendous job.

9. Adjourn-6:52

Respectfully submitted *Marta Sorchert*